
 

Newnan City Council Meeting 
FEBRUARY 14, 2023 

Newnan City Hall 
Richard A. Bolin Council Chambers 

25 LaGrange Street 
2:30 PM 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

INVOCATION 

READING OF MINUTES 

A. Minutes from Special Called Meeting on January 17, 2023 

B. Minutes from Regular Meeting on January 24, 2023 

REPORTS OF BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

C. 1 Appointment - Cultural Arts Commission, 3 year term 

D. 1 Appointment - Ethics Commission, 2 year term 

E. 1 Appointment - Keep Newnan Beautiful, interim term until 8/1/24 

F. 2 Appointments - Parks Commission, 3 year terms 

G. 2 Appointments - Tree Commission, 3 year terms 

H. 1 Appointment - Newnan Youth Activities, 3 year term 

REPORTS ON OPERATIONS BY CITY MANAGER 

REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM MAYOR 

NEW BUSINESS 

I. Public Hearing - Application for Alcohol Beverage License - D&W 2021 LLC dba Dynasty 
Restaurant - Retail on Premise (Pouring) Sales of Malt Beverages and Wine - 34 Bullsboro Dr. - 
Reason: New Business 

J. Public Hearing - Application for Alcohol Beverage License - Newnan Coweta Historical Society 
History Center - Special Permit Location - 60 E. Broad St. - Reason: Personnel 

K. Public Hearing - Application for Alcohol Beverage License - Newnan Coweta Historical Society, 
McRitchie Hollis Museum - Special Permit Location Only - 74 Jackson St. - Reason: Personnel 

L. Update on Progress of Distilled Spirits Package Store License - 109 Bullsboro Drive 

M. 31 Jones St - Request a public hearing on March 28, 2023 for structure. 

N. Consideration of Resolution and Mowing and Maintenance Agreement between the City of 
Newnan and Georgia Department of Transportation (GDOT) for Roundabout at 
SR14/US29/Corinth Rd 

O. Consideration of Entering into an Agreement with a qualified firm to provide Construction Services 
for the redevelopment of the Wadsworth Parking Lot; and the approval of an associated budget 

P. Consideration of Update to City of Newnan Fee Schedule 

Q. Consideration of Vendor Recommendation for Audit Services 

R. Housing Authority of Newnan ARPA Update and Amendment Request 

1



NEWNAN CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA – February 14, 2023 @ 2:30 PM .......................... Page 2 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

S. Status Updates on 21 Berry Ave, 5 Smith St, 33 Ray St and 25 Pinson St 

T. 25 Pinson St - Owner update and request for extension. 

VISITORS, PETITIONS, COMMUNICATIONS & COMPLAINTS 

U. Request from Foundation Church to Close South Court Sq on April 7th for Good Friday Event 
from 2pm-10pm 

MOTION TO ENTER INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION 

V. Motion to Enter into Executive Session 

ADJOURNMENT 

2



CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA 
SPECIAL CALLED MEETING                                                      JANUARY 17, 2023   

The special called meeting of the City Council of the City of Newnan, Georgia was held on 
Tuesday, January 17, 2023 at 4:30PM in the Richard A. Bolin Council Chambers of City 
Hall with Mayor Keith Brady presiding.  
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Brady called the meeting to order and delivered the invocation.  
  
PRESENT 
 
Mayor Keith Brady: Council members present: Rhodes Shell, George Alexander, Cynthia 
Jenkins, Dustin Koritko and Paul Guillaume. Absent: Ray DuBose. Also present:  City 
Manager, Cleatus Phillips; City Clerk, Megan Shea; Assistant City Manager, Hasco Craver 
and City Attorney, Brad Sears 
       
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
Mayor Brady explained that this meeting was solely for needing to hold executive session 
to discuss legal. Mayor Brady recused himself and turned the meeting over to Mayor Pro 
Tem Koritko.  
 
MOTION EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 
Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Koritko, seconded by Councilman Alexander that we now enter 
into closed session as allowed by O.C.G.A. Section 50-14-4 and pursuant to advice by the 
City Attorney, for the purpose of discussing legal issues and that we move, in open 
session to adopt a resolution authorizing and directing the Mayor or presiding officer to 
execute an affidavit in compliance with O.C.G.A. Section 50-14-4, and that this body ratify 
the actions of the Council taken in closed session and confirm that the subject matters of 
the closed session were within exceptions permitted by the open meetings law at 4:31PM.  
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (5-0) 
 
RESOLUTION/MAYOR’S AFFIDAVIT FOR EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
Motion by Councilman Guillaume, seconded by Councilman Alexander to adopt the 
resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute the affidavit stating that the subject matter of 
the closed portion of the Council was within the exceptions provided by O.C.G.A. Section 
50-14-4(b).  
     MOTION CARRIED. (5-0)  
 
GREEN TOP ROAD ARBITRATION APPEAL 
 
Motion by Councilman Alexander, seconded by Councilman Guillaume to appeal the 
decision of the arbitration panel in the Green Top Road Annexation Arbitration due to the 
validity of the objection, the County meeting the evidentiary burden and the requirement 

3



CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA 
SPECIAL CALLED MEETING                                                      JANUARY 17, 2023   

for provision of water and sewer service by the Coweta County Water and Sewer 
Authority.  
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (5-0) 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
Motion by Councilman Alexander, seconded by Councilman Guillaume to adjourn the 
meeting at 5:20PM.  
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (5-0) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
     
___________________      _________________ 
Megan Shea, City Clerk      Keith Brady, Mayor 
    

4



CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING                                             JANUARY 24, 2023_   

The regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Newnan, Georgia was held on 
Tuesday, January 24, 2023 at 6:30 p.m. in the Richard A. Bolin Council Chambers of City 
Hall with Mayor Keith Brady presiding.  
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Brady called the meeting to order and delivered the invocation. 
  
PRESENT 
 
Mayor Keith Brady: Council members present:  Ray DuBose, Rhodes Shell, George 
Alexander, Cynthia Jenkins, Dustin Koritko and Paul Guillaume. Also present:  City 
Manager, Cleatus Phillips; Assistant City Manager, Hasco Craver; City Clerk, Megan Shea 
and City Attorney, Brad Sears.   
 
MINUTES – SPECIAL CALLED MEETING – JANUARY 9, 2023 
 
Motion by Councilman DuBose, seconded by Councilman Shell to dispense with the 
reading of the minutes of the Special Called meeting on January 9, 2023 and adopt them 
as presented.  
     MOTION CARRIED. (7-0)   
    
MINUTES – REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING – JANUARY 10, 2023 
 
Motion by Councilman DuBose, seconded by Councilman Guillaume to dispense with the 
reading of the minutes of the Regular Council meeting on January 10, 2023 and adopt 
them as presented.  
     MOTION CARRIED. (7-0)  
 
NEWNAN YOUTH COUNCIL ATTENDEES 
 
Councilwoman Jenkins introduced the members of Youth Council who were in 
attendance. Isabella Scarano, Anna Beth Shelnutt and Sam Knight.  
 
BOY SCOUT IN ATTENDANCE 
 
Mayor Brady introduced Boy Scout Will Barnett who was in attendance. He is with Troop 
57 out of Heatherwood Baptist Church working on his Communication Badge. Mayor 
Brady wished him luck on his road to Eagle.  
 
APPOINTMENT – CULTURAL ARTS COMMISSION, 3 YEAR TERM 
 
 Continue to next agenda.  
      
 
 

5



CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING                                             JANUARY 24, 2023_   

APPOINTMENT – KEEP NEWNAN BEAUTIFUL, INTERIM APPOINTMENT 
 
Continue to next agenda.  
 
APPOINTMENTS – PARKS COMMISSION, 3 YEAR TERMS 
 
Continue to next agenda.  
 
APPOINTMENTS – PLANNING COMMISSION, 3 YEAR TERMS 
 
Motion by Councilwoman Jenkins, seconded by Councilman Alexander to re-appoint Alton 
West to the Planning Commission.  
     MOTION CARRIED. (7-0) 
 
Motion by Councilman Shell, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Koritko to re-appoint Fred E. 
Hamlin to the Planning Commission.  
     MOTION CARRIED. (7-0) 
 
APPOINTMENTS – TREE COMMISSION, 3 YEAR TERMS 
 
Continue to next agenda.  
 
APPOINTMENT – NEWNAN YOUTH ACTIVITIES, 3 YEAR TERM 
 
Continue to next agenda.  
 
CITY MANAGER 
 
Mr. Phillips stated that the development team working on the 57 East Project is nearing 
completion with their due diligence, market analysis and plan proposals. They have 
requested a special meeting before Council.  
 
Mayor Brady called a special Work Session for February 22nd at 5:30pm and notified the 
press.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING REQUEST RZ2022-13; 34.497 + ACRES AT 60 
HOSPITAL RD (PORTION OF TAX PARCEL #N41A-001 & N41A-002) FROM OI-1 TO 
PDR – REQUEST TO CONTINUE TO MARCH 28, 2023 COUNCIL MEETING 
 
Mayor Brady recused himself due to a business relationship with the seller. He turned the 
meeting over to Mayor Pro Tem Koritko. Councilwoman Jenkins also recused herself due 
to being on the Piedmont Newnan Hospital board.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Koritko explained that the applicant submitted a letter requesting to 
withdraw the item altogether and asking for a waiver of the 12-month time limitation set 
forth in the City Ordinance.  

6



CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING                                             JANUARY 24, 2023_   

Councilman Alexander asked when the applicant thought they might bring this back to 
Council? Melissa Griffis on behalf of the applicant stated that they are not sure right now, 
things have been taking longer than anticipated after the holidays. Hopefully in the next 
30-60 days but not sure.   
 
Motion by Councilman Guillaume, seconded by Councilman Alexander to accept the 
withdrawal and waive the 12-month time limitation to return to Council.               
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (5-0)  
 
PRESENTATION OF INTERIM REPORT FROM THE FARMER STREET CEMETERY 
COMMISSION 
 
Assistant City Manager, Hasco Craver introduced Jocelyn Palmer, acting Chair of the 
commission.  
 
Ms. Palmer explained that this was to provide an update on progress. There is currently 
an RFP out to find a programming person to assist the commission with the final phase of 
recommendations regarding preservation efforts and improvements.  
 
There are some less than wholesome activities going on at the cemetery and the 
commission is looking to City Staff to help deal with that to ensure the site is protected. 
The commission discovered there is a black cemetery network organization out of The 
University of South Florida. There are 4 sites in Georgia already that are part of the group 
and the commission would like to join the group.  
 
Mr. Craver stated that the commission is looking for guidance from Council to instruct Staff 
and the City Attorney. There are some fences erected along Washington St. that the 
commission believes are on cemetery property. That needs to be looked at more closely 
to help protect the cemetery. The commission would also like to establish visiting hours for 
not just this cemetery but all City cemeteries.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Koritko asked about the fences encroaching on City property. Mr. Craver 
stated that they are not sure but that is why they are looking for direction to confirm if that 
is the case or not.  
 
Motion by Councilwoman Jenkins, seconded by Councilman Alexander to direct Staff to 
follow the recommendations of the Farmer Street Cemetery Commission and bring back 
to Council.  
     MOTION CARRIED. (7-0)  
 
 
 
 
 

7



CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING                                             JANUARY 24, 2023_   

REQUESTS FOR STREETS AND SIDEWALK CLOSURES FOR MAIN STREET 
EVENTS 2023 
 
Assistant City Manager, Hasco Craver stated that there have been some tweaks and 
additions this year. Jesse Branch, Special Events Coordinator, explained that an 
additional Market Day date has been added in March. There will also be a new event this 
year, the Downtown Newnan Restaurant Week and they are still figuring out all the details 
for that.  
 
Motion by Councilman DuBose, seconded by Councilman Shell to approve the requests 
as presented.                    
     MOTION CARRIED. (7-0) 
 
CONSIDERATION TO EXERCISE OPEN CONTAINER AMEMDMENT TO CHAPTER 3, 
ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES DURING MAIN STREET NEWNANIGHTS CONCERT 
SERIES 2023 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Koritko asked if this is just for Greenville Street Park? Mr. Craver 
explained that it is just for the park and that this section of the ordinance allows for brown 
bagging as it’s commonly called so people can bring alcohol to the park for the concert. 
This is the same as they do for Jazz in the Park.  
 
Motion by Councilman Shell, seconded by Councilwoman Jenkins to approve the request 
as presented.   

MOTION CARRIED. (7-0)  
 
CONTINUANCE OF PUBLIC HEARING – RZ2022-12; 3.3 + ACRES AT 420 
JEFFERSON ST. (TAX PARCEL #N57D-096) FROM RS-15 TO CGN 
 
Mayor Brady explained that there was a letter similar to the previous item, asking for the 
item to be withdrawn and for a waiver of the 12-month limitation.  
 
Motion by Councilman Shell, seconded by Councilman DuBose to accept the letter as 
presented.  
     MOTION CARRIED.  (7-0)  
 
 
REQUEST FROM HOUSING AUTHORITY OF NEWNAN TO CONTINUE TO STORE 
TRAILERS AT 10 JORDAN ST.  
 
Councilman DuBose asked how long this will be for? There was not a specific date given. 
Ms. Sandra Strozier, President and CEO of the Housing Authority of Newnan explained 
that the trailers were donated and they are made available for use when needed. This will 
continue as long as the Housing Authority owns the property.  
 

8



CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING                                             JANUARY 24, 2023_   

Motion by Councilwoman Jenkins, seconded by Councilman Guillaume to approve the 
request as presented.  

MOTION CARRIED. (7-0)  
 
REQUEST FROM BRENT WALKER AND M.O.V.E REAL ESTATE GROUP 
REGARDING PROPERTIES ON RAY ST.  
 
Mayor Brady explained that this request is for the City to sell these properties on Ray St. 
to the real estate group. Mr. Craver further explained that the subject property is 25 Ray 
St. The City does not own or have an interest in 23 or 26 Ray St. During the 2019 Council 
Retreat there was a discussion about City owned lots. At that time 25 Ray St. was 
deemed to be something for the Urban Redevelopment Agency to handle.  
 
Mr. Brent Walker explained that they want to buy 25 Ray St. to build a single-family home. 
He is just starting his business and is from Coweta County. Mayor Brady said that this lot 
is dedicated to the Newnan Urban Redevelopment Agency to build on, unless Council 
wants to change that. Council agreed that they were not inclined to change that and not at 
the point where they want to sell that lot.  
 
Motion by Councilwoman Jenkins, seconded by Councilman Alexander to deny the 
request.  
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (7-0) 
 
 
VISITOR 
 
Marcus Rosser signed the sign-in sheet to speak but was not present in Council 
Chambers when that time came.  
 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
   
Motion by Councilman Alexander, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Koritko to adjourn the 
Council meeting at 6:55pm.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (7-0) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
___________________      _________________ 
Megan Shea, City Clerk      Keith Brady, Mayor 
    

9



APPLICATION FOR ALCOHOL BEVERAGE LICENSE  

  

 
Name: D & W 2021, LLC dba Dynasty Restaurant 

                      

Licensee:  Jie Lin 

          

License Representative:  N/A 

            

Type License: Retail Off Premise (Package) Sales of Malt Beverages & Wine  

  

Location:     34 Bullsboro Dr.  

 

TO THE CITY COUNCIL: REASON – NEW BUSINESS 

 

(1) The above application with supporting documents and application fee has been filed in 

the City Clerk's office; reviewed by the appropriate departments of the City and appears to be 

(complete). (Sec 3-33) 

 

If incomplete, reasons 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

(2) The citizenship requirements (have) been met. (Sec. 3-34) 

 

If not, reasons ____________________________________________________________ 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

(3) Residency requirements (have) been met. (Sec. 3-35) 

 

If not, reasons ____________________________________________________________ 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

(4) The location appears (to comply) with zoning requirements. (Sec 3-37) 

 

If not, reasons ____________________________________________________________ 

 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Application - Beverage License 

Page 2 

10



 

 

(5) The location of the proposed premises appears (to comply) with the distance 

requirements set forth in Sec. 3-39. 

 

If not, reasons ____________________________________________________________ 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

(6) All taxes or other debts to the City (are) current. (Sec 3-38) 

 

If not, reasons ___________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

(7) A publisher's affidavit (has) been filed showing the notice requirement  

(has) been complied with. (Sec 3-40 (a)) 

                       

 

(8) An affidavit from the applicant certifying posting of the proposed premises (has) been 

filed. (Sec. 3-40(b)) 

 

N/A 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

Megan Shea 

City Clerk 

 

 

 

11



APPLICATION FOR TRANSFER OF ALCOHOL 

BEVERAGE LICENSE  

  

 
Name: Newnan Coweta Historical Society – History Center 

                      

Licensee:  From: Gary Welden 

                 To: Larisa M. Scott   

          

License Representative:  N/A 

            

Type License: Special Permit Location Only (no sales)  

  

Location:     60 E. Broad St.  

 

TO THE CITY COUNCIL: REASON – PERSONNEL 

 

(1) The above application with supporting documents and application fee has been filed in 

the City Clerk's office; reviewed by the appropriate departments of the City and appears to be 

(complete). (Sec 3-33) 

 

If incomplete, reasons 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

(2) The citizenship requirements (have) been met. (Sec. 3-34) 

 

If not, reasons ____________________________________________________________ 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

(3) Residency requirements (have) been met. (Sec. 3-35) 

 

If not, reasons ____________________________________________________________ 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

(4) The location appears (to comply) with zoning requirements. (Sec 3-37) 

 

If not, reasons ____________________________________________________________ 

 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

 

12



Application - Beverage License 

Page 2 

 

 

(5) The location of the proposed premises appears (to comply) with the distance 

requirements set forth in Sec. 3-39. 

 

If not, reasons ____________________________________________________________ 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

(6) All taxes or other debts to the City (are) current. (Sec 3-38) 

 

If not, reasons ___________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

(7) A publisher's affidavit (has) been filed showing the notice requirement  

(has) been complied with. (Sec 3-40 (a)) 

                       

 

(8) An affidavit from the applicant certifying posting of the proposed premises (has) been 

filed. (Sec. 3-40(b)) 

 

N/A 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

Megan Shea 

City Clerk 

 

 

 

13



APPLICATION FOR TRANSFER OF ALCOHOL 

BEVERAGE LICENSE  

  

 
Name: Newnan Coweta Historical Society – McRitchie Hollis Museum 

                      

Licensee:  From: Gary Welden 

                 To: Larisa M. Scott   

          

License Representative:  N/A 

            

Type License: Special Permit Location  Only (no sales) 

  

Location:     74 Jackson St.  

 

TO THE CITY COUNCIL: REASON – PERSONNEL 

 

(1) The above application with supporting documents and application fee has been filed in 

the City Clerk's office; reviewed by the appropriate departments of the City and appears to be 

(complete). (Sec 3-33) 

 

If incomplete, reasons 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

(2) The citizenship requirements (have) been met. (Sec. 3-34) 

 

If not, reasons ____________________________________________________________ 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

(3) Residency requirements (have) been met. (Sec. 3-35) 

 

If not, reasons ____________________________________________________________ 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

(4) The location appears (to comply) with zoning requirements. (Sec 3-37) 

 

If not, reasons ____________________________________________________________ 

 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

 

14



Application - Beverage License 

Page 2 

 

 

(5) The location of the proposed premises appears (to comply) with the distance 

requirements set forth in Sec. 3-39. 

 

If not, reasons ____________________________________________________________ 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

(6) All taxes or other debts to the City (are) current. (Sec 3-38) 

 

If not, reasons ___________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

(7) A publisher's affidavit (has) been filed showing the notice requirement  

(has) been complied with. (Sec 3-40 (a)) 

                       

 

(8) An affidavit from the applicant certifying posting of the proposed premises (has) been 

filed. (Sec. 3-40(b)) 

 

N/A 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

Megan Shea 

City Clerk 

 

 

 

15



City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 
 
Date: February 14, 2023  
 
Agenda Item:  31 Jones St 
  
Prepared and Presented by: 
Matt Murray, Code Enforcement Officer 
 
Submitted by: Bill Stephenson, Chief Building Official 
 
 

 

Purpose:      To schedule the public hearing concerning the dilapidated structure 
located at 31 Jones St.  

 
 
Background:  Owner: Willie Allen & Dennis Montgomery 
                                   Permits: none 
 Date Sub-Standard housing file was opened: November 15, 2021 
 

Does the cost to bring this structure into compliance by means of repair 
exceed 50% of the structure’s assessed tax value? YES  
 
Previous inspections by Newnan Building Department have deemed the 
property to be unsafe. Information was presented to Council electronically 
concerning the condition of the above-mentioned property on January 23, 
2023.  

 
 
 
Options:              

1. Set Public Hearing Date for March 28, 2023.  
2. Other direction from Council. 

 
 
Funding:       Not Applicable 
 
 
Recommendation:   Staff is requesting Council’s approval to proceed with Option 1. 
       
 
Previous Discussions with Council:            
 
January 23, 2023 - Council informed of conditions.    
 
 
    

 

 

 

 

 
16



 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

17



 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

18



RESOLUTION 

APPROVING AGREEMENT BETWEEN GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF 

TRANSPORTATION AND CITY OF NEWNAN REGARDING RIGHT OF WAY 

MAINTENANCE AS A PART OF THE SR14/US29 AT CS2334/CORINTH ROAD IN 

NEWNAN PROJECT 

 WHEREAS, the Georgia Department of Transportation (the “Department”) is 
constructing a roundabout intersection improvement project in the City of Newnan (the 
“City”) identified as the SR14/US29 at Corinth Road Project, P.I. No. 0015844, Coweta 
County (the “Project”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has represented a desire to provide maintenance services 
within the right of way as a part of the Project and has agreed to provide maintenance 
services within the right of way at the Project location; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Department has agreed to permit City to provide maintenance 
services within the right of way at the Project location. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Newnan, 
Georgia and it is hereby resolved by the authority of same that the Agreement Between 
Georgia Department of Transportation AND THE CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA for right 
of way maintenance as a part of the SR 14/US 29 at CS2334/Corinth Road I Newnan 
Project attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and by reference made a part hereof (the 
“Agreement”) is hereby approved and the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to 
execute the Agreement and to transmit the Agreement to the Georgia Department of 
Transportation. 
 
 SO RESOLVED in open session, regularly assembled this ______ day of February, 
2023. 
 
ATTEST:      _______________________________________ 
       L. Keith Brady, Mayor 
____________________________________ 
Megan Shea, City Clerk    _______________________________________ 
       Dustin Koritko, Mayor Pro-Tem 
REVIEWED AS TO FORM: 
       _______________________________________ 
       George M. Alexander, Councilmember 
______________________________________ 
C. Bradford Sears, Jr., City Attorney  _______________________________________ 
       Cynthia E. Jenkins, Councilmember 
 
_______________________________________  _______________________________________ 
Cleatus Phillips, City Manager   Rhodes H. Shell, Councilmember 
 
       _______________________________________ 
       Raymond F. DuBose, Councilmember 
 
       _______________________________________ 
       Paul Guillaume, Councilmember 
 

19



Page 1 of 11 

Rev: April 2022 

RIGHT OF WAY MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT (LOCAL GOVERNMENT 

ONLY) By and Between 

THE 

GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

AND 

City of Newnan 

PROJECT ID # 0015844 
PERMIT ID # 0015844 

STATE ROUTE: 00001400, MP 47.1 to MP 47.3 

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this  (“Effective Date”) 

by and between the DEPARTMENT of Transportation, an agency of the State of Georgia, hereinafter 

referred  to  as  “DEPARTMENT”,  and  the City of Newnan  hereinafter  referred  to  as 

“LOCAL GOVERNMENT” (the DEPARTMENT and LOCAL GOVERNMENT are sometimes 

referred to herein individually as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties”). 

WHEREAS, the DEPARTMENT desires to enter into a partnership to perform certain services relating 

to maintenance within DEPARTMENT’S right of way, hereinafter called the “PROJECT”, and 

WHEREAS, the PROJECT is associated with a permit approved and issued by the 

DEPARTMENT, permit identification number (PERMIT ID #), # 0015844, which is referenced above 

and in Exhibit A, MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT (MA) WORK PLAN, and is hereby incorporated into 

this Agreement as if fully restated herein; and 

WHEREAS, the LOCAL GOVERNMENT has represented to the DEPARTMENT that it shall 

bear all costs and liability associated with the PROJECT; and 

WHEREAS, the LOCAL GOVERNMENT has represented to the DEPARTMENT that it is 

qualified and experienced to provide such services and the DEPARTMENT has relied upon such 

representation. 

20



Page 2 of 11 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants as 

herein contained, it is agreed by and between the Parties hereto that: 

ARTICLE I 

SCOPE OF PROJECT 

The DEPARTMENT authorizes the LOCAL GOVERNMENT to perform or cause to be 

performed, the PROJECT consisting of certain services related to maintaining an identified section(s) of the 

DEPARTMENT’S rights of way.  This Agreement does not provide the LOCAL GOVERNMENT, by 

implication or otherwise, any right, title or interest in or to the DEPARTMENT’S right-of-way in 

general nor to the PROJECT area specifically, except the right to conduct the PROJECT work set 

forth in the MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT (MA) WORK PLAN (Exhibit A) in accordance with 

the terms and conditions of this Agreement.   

The maintenance duties and responsibilities of the LOCAL GOVERNMENT are defined set forth 

in Exhibit A, MA WORK PLAN, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference as if fully set out 

herein.  The DEPARTMENT grants to the LOCAL GOVERNMENT the right to maintain that specific 

section(s) of DEPARTMENT right-of-way located in Coweta County, as more particularly described in 

Exhibit A. 

The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall abide by the Federal Manual of Uniform Traffic Control 

Devices (MUTCD) standards, current edition, for temporary traffic control and the standards for all 

PROJECT activities.  Equipment or materials utilized for the PROJECT must be moved on or across a 

traveled right of way in a manner as not to unduly interfere with traffic. 

Should the LOCAL GOVERNMENT desire that these maintenance services be performed by 

a third party, the LOCAL GOVERNMENT and the third party shall enter into an agreement, whereby 

the LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall assume all responsibility for repayment to the third party for those 

services rendered as set forth in Exhibit A.  The Agreement between the LOCAL GOVERNMENT and 

any third parties to this Agreement, shall meet all operational and administrative requirements, 

including the provisions of liability insurance, as set forth by the DEPARTMENT.  All liability 

associated with the PROJECT shall be borne by the LOCAL GOVERNMENT and any third parties, 

as set forth in Article VIII, herein. 

In the event the LOCAL GOVERNMENT desires to perform any major maintenance 

activities, including significant landscaping, installation or significant repair of 

fencing/site furnishings/murals/signs/walls/lighting, or any other activities that may interfere with traffic 

or pedestrian flow within the right of way PROJECT limits, the LOCAL GOVERNMENT understands 

and agrees that it shall apply for and obtain a permit in accordance with the current edition of 

the DEPARTMENT’S 

21



Page 3 of 11 

Driveway & Encroachment Control Manual prior to performance, and execute a separate agreement with the 

DEPARTMENT associated specifically with such permit. 

ARTICLE II 

EXECUTION OF AGREEMENT AND AUTHORIZATION 

TIME OF PERFORMANCE 

The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall begin work on the PROJECT under this Agreement 

immediately after receiving a signed and executed copy of the Agreement, unless noted otherwise in 

Exhibit A or upon completion of the construction project associated with PERMIT ID # 0015844 . 

The duration of this Agreement shall be for fifty years from the Effective Date unless terminated 

sooner by the DEPARTMENT or LOCAL GOVERNMENT. 

ARTICLE III 

SUBSTANTIAL CHANGES 

If, prior to the satisfactory completion of the services under this Agreement, any Party materially 

alters the scope, character or complexity of the services from those required under the Agreement, a 

Supplemental Agreement shall be executed between the Parties. It is understood, however, that LOCAL 

GOVERNMENT shall not engage in any activities or conduct any work which would be considered to be 

outside the PROJECT scope of the permission granted to LOCAL GOVERNMENT by the 

DEPARTMENT. Minor changes in the work which do not involve increased compensation, extensions of 

time, or changes in the goals and objectives of the work may be made by written notification of such 

change by any Party with written approval by the other Parties. 

ARTICLE IV 

ASSIGNMENT 

It is understood by the LOCAL GOVERNMENT that the work is considered personal and, except 

as provided for in Article I, LOCAL GOVERNMENT agrees not to assign, sublet or transfer any or all of 

their interest in this Agreement without prior written approval of the DEPARTMENT. 

ARTICLE V 

CONTRACT DISPUTES 

This Agreement shall be deemed to have been executed in Coweta County, Georgia, without 

reference to its choice of law doctrine, and all questions of interpretation and construction shall be 

governed by the laws of the State of Georgia. Any litigation arising out of this Agreement shall be 

22



Page 4 of 11 

commenced within the State of Georgia. The foregoing provisions shall not be construed as waiving any 

immunity to suit or liability, including without limitation, sovereign immunity which may be available to the 

Department. 

ARTICLE VI 

INSURANCE 

1. It is understood that the LOCAL GOVERNMENT (indicate by checking which is applicable):

is self-insured and all claims against LOCAL GOVERNMENT will be handled through 

[INSERT NAME OF GROUP/ENTITY THROUGH WHICH LG IS SELF-INSURED]. 

OR 

shall, prior to beginning work, obtain coverage from a private insurance company or cause 

its consultant/contractor to obtain coverage in the minimum insurance amounts indicated below in 

this ARTICLE VI. 

2. Minimum Amounts.  The following minimum amounts of insurance coverage from insurers rated at

least A- by A.M. Best’s and registered to do business in the State of Georgia:

(a) Workmen’s Compensation Insurance in accordance with the laws of the State of Georgia.

(b) Commercial General Liability Insurance of at least $1,000,000 per occurrence $3,000,000

aggregate, including Automobile Comprehensive Liability Coverage with bodily injury in the

minimum amount of $1,000,000 combined single limits each occurrence.  The

DEPARTMENT shall be named as an additional insured and a copy of the policy

endorsement shall be provided with the insurance certificate.

(c) The above-listed insurance coverages shall be maintained in full force and effect for the

entire term of the Agreement.  Failure by the LOCAL GOVERNMENT to procure and

maintain the insurance as set forth above shall be considered a default and cause for

termination of this Agreement and, if applicable, forfeiture of the Performance and Payment

Bonds.

(d) Excess liability coverage.  To achieve the appropriate coverage levels set forth in this

Article, a combination of a specific policy written with an umbrella policy covering

liabilities above stated limits is acceptable.

3. The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall furnish upon request to the DEPARTMENT, certificates of

insurance evidencing such coverage. The insurance certificate must provide the following:

i. Name, address, signature and telephone number of authorized agents.

23



Page 5 of 11 

ii. Name and address of insured.
iii. Name of Insurance Company.
iv. Description of coverage in standard terminology.
v. Policy number, policy period and limits of liability.

vi. Name and address of DEPARTMENT as certificate holder.
vii. Thirty (30) day notice of cancellation.

viii. Details of any special policy exclusions.

4. The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall, at least fifteen (15) days prior to the expiration date or dates

of expiring policies, deposit certified copies of renewal, or new policies, or other acceptable evidence

of insurance with the DEPARTMENT.

5. Waiver of Subrogation. There is no waiver of subrogation rights by either Party with respect to

insurance. 

ARTICLE VII 

COMPENSATION 
It is agreed that the LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall conduct all work at no cost to the 

DEPARTMENT, and without compensation from the DEPARTMENT.  It is further agreed that any and all 

issues relating to compensation and payment shall be resolved by and between the LOCAL 

GOVERNMENT and any successors, subcontractors, or assigns thereto. 

The DEPARTMENT and the LOCAL GOVERNMENT further agree that, should the 

DEPARTMENT be required to conduct any inspections and/or supervision of the PROJECT beyond that 

which would normally occur in the ordinary course of the DEPARTMENT’S maintenance activities, the 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall reimburse the DEPARTMENT for such inspection and supervision.  The 

rate of reimbursement for the DEPARTMENT’S inspection and supervision shall in no case exceed a rate 

determined to be reasonable by the Parties. 

Should the LOCAL GOVERNMENT and the DEPARTMENT desire to change this agreement at 

a later date to provide for compensation to LOCAL GOVERNMENT, or any successors or assigns thereto, 

such change shall only be permitted by a supplemental agreement as set forth in Article III herein.  Any 

supplemental agreements involving compensation shall be subject to the DEPARTMENT review and 

approval.   

ARTICLE VIII 

RESPONSIBILITY FOR CLAIMS AND LIABILITY 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT NOT AGENT OF DEPARTMENT 

To the extent allowed by law, the LOCAL GOVERNMENT and all successors and assigns thereto, 

shall save harmless the DEPARTMENT, its officers, agents, and employees from all suits, claims, actions 

24



Page 6 of 11 

or damages of any nature whatsoever resulting from the performance of PROJECT work under this 

Agreement, or due to any breach of this Agreement by the LOCAL GOVERNMENT, except to the extent 

of harm caused by the DEPARTMENT or its agents.  These indemnities shall not be limited by reason of 

the listing of any insurance coverage. 

The LOCAL GOVERNMENT further agrees that it shall be fully responsible for injury or damage 

to landscaping, landscape related items, and any other non-standard and decorative elements previously 

installed by or for the LOCAL GOVERNMENT within the right of way, and for any damage to the 

DEPARTMENT’S signs, structures, or roadway fixtures, if the LOCAL GOVERNMENT caused the 

damage.   

It is further understood and agreed that the LOCAL GOVERNMENT, or any successor or assigns 

thereto, in the conduct of any work involved in the PROJECT, shall not be considered the agent of the 

DEPARTMENT or of the State of Georgia. 

ARTICLE IX 

TERMINATION OF CONTRACT 

The DEPARTMENT may terminate this Agreement for just cause or convenience at any time by 

giving the LOCAL GOVERNMENT at least thirty (30) days written notice of such termination, unless 

there is imminent or serious danger to the public health, safety, or welfare or to property, in which case 

termination shall be immediate.  Upon receipt of such notice of termination, the LOCAL GOVERNMENT 

shall discontinue and cause all PROJECT work under this Agreement to terminate upon the date specified 

in the said notice.  In the event of such termination, the DEPARTMENT shall be paid for any amounts as 

may be due it as specified in Article VII up to and including the specified date of termination.  

The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall have the right to terminate this Agreement at any time by 

giving the DEPARTMENT at least thirty (30) days advance written notice, provided that the 

DEPARTMENT is reimbursed in full for all services rendered pursuant to Article VII.  Termination 

initiated by the LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall be contingent upon the following, if applicable: 

(a) The LOCAL GOVERNMENT, at the discretion of the DEPARTMENT, removing the planted

landscaping, landscape related items, and any other non-standard and decorative elements that

were installed by or for the LOCAL GOVERNMENT at no cost to the DEPARTMENT.

(b) The LOCAL GOVERNMENT restoring the removed landscape areas to their original

condition or a condition that meets federal standards and is acceptable to the DEPARTMENT.

(c) The LOCAL GOVERNMENT restoring the removed non-standard and decorative elements

with standard DEPARTMENT elements that meet federal and state requirements.

(d) The LOCAL GOVERNMENT reimbursing the DEPARTMENT in full any state and/or

federal funds used to purchase and install the landscaping, landscape related items, and other

25



Page 7 of 11 

non-standard and decorative elements that are no longer to be maintained by the LOCAL 

GOVERNMENT. 

The DEPARTMENT and the LOCAL GOVERNMENT agree that should the LOCAL 

GOVERNMENT fail to perform the maintenance activities as set forth in Exhibit A, the DEPARTMENT 

may require the LOCAL GOVERNMENT to remove, restore, and reimburse according to items “A”, “B”, 

“C”, and “D” above, as applicable, and then terminate the Agreement.  

ARTICLE X 

COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAW 

The undersigned certify that: 

1. This Agreement is subject to applicable state and federal laws, standards, and rules and regulations.

2. The provisions of Sections 45-10-20 through 45-10-28 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated

relating to Conflict of Interest and State Employees and Officials Trading with the State have been

complied with in full.

3. The provisions of Section 50-24-1 through 50-24-6 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated,

relating to the “Drug-Free Workplace Act” have been complied with in full.

ARTICLE XI  

MISCELLANEOUS 

1. NON-WAIVER.  No failure of either Party to exercise any right or power given to such Party under

this Agreement, or to insist upon strict compliance by the other Party with the provisions of this

Agreement, and no custom or practice of either Party at variance with the terms and conditions of

this Agreement, will constitute a waiver of either Party's right to demand exact and strict compliance

by the other Party with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

2. NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES. Nothing contained herein shall be construed as conferring

upon or giving to any person, other than the Parties hereto, any rights or benefits under or by reason

of this Agreement.

3. SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the

contrary, no term or condition of this Agreement shall be construed or interpreted as a waiver,

express or implied, of any of the immunities, rights, benefits, protection, or other provisions under

the Georgia Constitution.

4. CONTINUITY.  Each of the provisions of this Agreement will be binding upon and inure to the

benefit and detriment of the Parties and the successors and assigns of the Parties.

5. WHEREAS CLAUSE AND EXHIBITS.  The Whereas Clauses and Exhibits hereto are a part of

26



Page 8 of 11 

this Agreement and are incorporated herein by reference. 

6. SEVERABILITY.  If any one or more of the provisions contained herein are for any reason held by

any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, such

invalidity, illegality or unenforceability will not affect any other provision hereof, and this

Agreement will be construed as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision had never been

contained herein.

7. CAPTIONS.  The brief headings or titles preceding each provision hereof are for purposes of

identification and convenience only and should be completely disregarded in construing this

Agreement.

8. INTERPRETATION.  Should any provision of this Agreement require judicial interpretation, it is

agreed that the court interpreting or construing the same shall not apply a presumption that the terms

hereof shall be more strictly construed against one Party by reason of the rule of construction that a

document is to be construed more strictly against the Party who itself or through its agent prepared

the same, it being agreed that the agents of all Parties have participated in the preparation hereof.

9. Pursuant to O.C.G.A. Sec. 50-5-85, LOCAL GOVERNMENT hereby certifies that it is not

currently engaged in, and agrees that for the duration of this contract, it will not engage in a boycott

of Israel.

10. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This Agreement supersedes all prior negotiations, discussion, statements

and agreements between the Parties and constitutes the full, complete and entire agreement between

the Parties with respect hereto; no member, officer, employee or agent of either Party has authority

to make, or has made, any statement, agreement, representation or contemporaneous agreement, oral

or written, in connection herewith, amending, supplementing, modifying, adding to, deleting from, or

changing the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  No modification of or amendment to this

Agreement will be binding on either Party hereto unless such modification or amendment will be

properly authorized, in writing, properly signed by both Parties and incorporated in and by reference

made a part hereof.

27



Page 9 of 11 

The covenants herein contained shall, except as otherwise provided, accrue to the benefit of and be 

binding upon the successors and assigns of the Parties hereto. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, said Parties have hereunto set their hand and affixed their seals the day 

and year above first written. 

GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

______________________________________ _(Seal) 
Commissioner or designee 

ATTEST: 

____________________________________ 
______________________________________ 
Treasurer 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT: 

______________________________________ (Seal) 
Name and Title:   

28



Page 10 of 11 

EXHIBIT A 

MAINTENANCE WORK PLAN 

For all maintenance activities, at a minimum, abide by the Federal Manual of Uniform Traffic 

Control Devices (MUTCD) standards, current edition, for temporary traffic control. Move 

equipment or materials on or across a traveled way in a manner as not to unduly interfere with 

traffic. 

Watering 

• Provide adequate water to maintain healthy plant material

• Water in a manner that it does not endanger pedestrian or vehicular traffic

• Water according to the state or local government restrictions

Pruning 

• Remove dead or diseased planted vegetation.

• Prune trees, shrubs and ground covers to maintain the health of the plants and to maintain

in the intended design character of the plant (no stump pruning or lollipop/ball shapes)

• Prune trees, shrubs, and ground covers as needed to remove damage by storm or accident

events and to prevent safety hazards.

• Prune to maintain open sight distances, clear zone areas and traffic sign visibility. Provide

clearance for pedestrian and vehicular traffic mobility.

• Prune according to American National Standards Institute, latest edition, A300 Part 1

pruning Standards

Weeding 

• Maintain right of way free of weeds, exotic and invasive pest plants, undesired vegetation

and other noxious weeds

• All Pesticide/Herbicide use shall be under the direct supervision of someone with the

appropriate Commercial Category 27 (right of way use) license.

29



Page 11 of 11

• When pesticides/herbicides are being applied the person applying shall have in their

possession all labeling associated with the pesticide/herbicide and their license/certification.

• Post warning signs for pesticide/herbicide use as required by state code.

Mowing and trimming of grass 

• Maintain a neat appearance and clear sight lines for pedestrian and vehicular traffic.

Litter 

• Completely remove all litter and debris and other objectionable material on site.

• Do not deposit or blow litter, debris and vegetation into gutters or drainage structures.

• Make disposal in accordance with local and state laws.

• Remove all graffiti within project limits

Installed Sidewalks/Multi-Use Trails 

• Maintain and repair sidewalks and brick pavers according to the Americans with

Disabilities Act (ADA)

• GDOT will not be responsible for damages to sidewalks/multi-use trails, amenities, etc.

caused by maintenance activities on state right of way

NOTE: All major maintenance repair activities and activities that may interfere with traffic or 

pedestrian flow within the right of way project limits, such as travel lane/walkway closures, require 

the LICENSEE notify the Department at least 48 hours prior to the activity to coordinate and gain 

Department approval. 

30



31



 

City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 

Date: February 14, 2023 

Agenda Item: Consideration of entering into an Agreement with a qualified 

firm to provide Construction Services for the redevelopment of 

the Wadsworth Parking Lot; and the approval of an associated 

budget 

Prepared and 

Presented By: 

Hasco Craver, Assistant City Manager 

 

 
Purpose:  

 
Newnan City Council may consider entering into an agreement with Georgia Development Partners (GDP) 

to provide construction services for the redevelopment of the Wadsworth Parking Lot; and the consideration 

of an associated budget. 

 

Background:   

The City of Newnan, beginning in July 2020, initiated internal conversations related to the needed improvements 

of the existing parking facility adjacent to the Wadsworth Auditorium and Fire Station 1.  With the establishment 

of the Leisure Services Department and the redevelopment of Fire Station 1, City staff engaged Ironwood Design 

to develop concepts for campus improvements, including parking facilities.   Through the remainder of 2020, City 

staff worked alongside Ironwood Design to consider sites challenges and opportunities.   

 

In February 2021, City staff received and approved a conceptual design.  Thereafter, a cost estimating exercise 

resulted in a discussion of employing a phased approach to the project’s delivery.  Phasing limits were agreed 

upon in Summer 2021.  Ironwood Design began working to develop construction documents throughout the 

remainder of 2021. 

 

In January/February 2022, City staff engaged an outfit to perform environmental testing on an existing structure 

(7 Lee Street) that was deemed non-contributing to the site and is required to be demolished to deliver the 

improved campus and parking plan.  Newnan City Council approved the demolition of the structure after holding 

a public hearing at the February 22, 2022 meeting.   

 

On May 24, 2022, Newnan City Council approved a contract with Ironwood Design to develop Construction 

documents for Phase I of the Wadsworth Parking Lot Improvement Project.  Over the next five (5) months, 

Ironwood Design developed construction documents that may be used for the solicitation of competitive 

proposals to make improvements to the facility.   

 

The City of Newnan, on November 8, 2022, released a Request for Proposals (RFP) for Event Hall Parking Lot 

Improvements.  

 

The City of Newnan received a proposal from one (1) firm in the amount $1,971,508.37 on December 5, 2022.   

 

The following firm submitted a proposal: 

 

32



Georgia Development Partners, LLC 

300 Galleria Pkwy, Suite 310 

Atlanta, GA 30339 

 

Please note that the proposed bid amount for this project is $740,508.37 over currently available funds. 

 

At the December 13, 2022 City Council meeting, upon the recommendation from City staff, the Newnan City 

Council instructed staff to initiate negotiations with the sole bidder to consider decreasing total cost while 

maintaining the goal of improving the area for long term use.   

 

Subsequently, City staff met with Georgia Development Partners, as well as members of the design team, Newnan 

Utilities and various city departments.  As a result, City staff was able to identify certain project adjustments that 

realize $402,355.57 in cost savings.  

 

The following list is illustrative of the activities/improvements that have been modified and/or eliminated to 

realize cost savings:  

 

 Retaining wall material change; 

 Reduced the length of retaining wall along Lee Street; 

 Due to removing part of retaining wall, the length of guard rail has been reduced; 

 Change cobble stone to paver at car loading zone. Also, changed the application to sand-set on 

GAB: 

 Lighting specification for parking lot pole lights changed to Galleon, as recommended by 

Newnan utilities; 

 Changed tree sizes to 4” caliper;  

 All custom wood fencing changed to aluminum fence. Fence around the AC units has been 

removed.  

 

New total project construction cost is $1,569,152.80.  

 

In addition to the recommendation to enter into an agreement with the Construction Firm, City staff is 

recommending that the Newnan City Council concurrently approve a project budget. 

 

The following is representative of the project budget, as proposed by the City Staff: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Activity Item  

Construction $1,569,152.80 

Architectural & Engineering  $45,000 

Testing Services $10,000 

Outdoor Furniture/ Fixtures  $30,000 

Permitting & Other Cost $5,000 

Owner Contingency $100,847.20 

Total  $1,760,000 

33



Funding:    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Recommendation:   
 

City staff recommends that the Newnan City Council enter into an agreement with Georgia Development 

Partners to provide Construction Services for the redevelopment of the Wadsworth Event Hall Parking 

Lot; and approve the associated budget.  

Attachments:  

1. Conceptual Design of the Wadsworth Event Hall Parking Lot 

2. Georgia Development Partner’s updated proposal 

 

Previous Discussion with Council:   
 

Beginning in early 2022, Newnan City Council began discussions related to the improvement of the 

Wadsworth Parking Lot, as described herein.   

 

SPLOST 2019 $50,000 

Parking Lot Reserve  $120,000 

General Fund (2022 Encumbrance) $300,000 

Tourism Capital  $260,000 

Fund Balance ($800,000 previously approved - $230,000 additional) $1,030,000 

Total Funding $1,760,000 

34



35



36



37



38



 
 

 

City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 

Date: February 14, 2023   

Agenda 

Item: 

Consideration of Update to City of Newnan Fee 
Schedule 

Prepared 

By: 

Hasco Craver, Assistant City Manager 

 
 

Purpose:  
 
Newnan City Council may consider an update to the current Fee Schedule to include fees 
related to the residential and downtown commercial sanitation programs. 
 
Background:   
 
The Newnan City Council, in September 2017, approved the provision of solid waste services in 
the downtown commercial district for qualifying businesses, and in accordance with associated 
amendments to Chapter 17 Solid Waste, of the City of Newnan Code of Ordinances.  
 
Additionally, the Newnan City Council, in September 2022, approved the provision of solid 
waste services for residential customers, in accordance with associated amendments to 
Chapter 17 Solid Waste, of the City of Newnan Code of Ordinances. 
 
Over time, the Newnan City Council has approved certain fees related to the provision of public 
services (facility rental, cemetery, special events, filming, etc.).   
 
More specifically, the Newnan City Council adopted certain fees for the successful collection 
and disposal of refuse, recycling, brush and bulk items at the time of the aforementioned 
program, policy and/or ordinance updates.     
 
In addition to the establishment of certain fees for service, the Newnan City Council, from time 
to time, has considered certain fees related to fines for non-payment and similarly relevant fees 
required to maintain the sanctity of certain public programs.  
 
Understanding that the City of Newnan’s Sanitation Department, at the direction of the Newnan 
City Council, is solely responsible for the management of all sanitation account types 
(commercial downtown and residential), City staff is presenting an updated fee schedule that 
clearly displays the fees related to the provision of all sanitation services, as approved by 
Newnan City Council, including fees related to non-payment and late payment.  
 
Funding:  
 
N/A 
 
Recommendation:  
 

39



City staff, in order to maintain the health of the Sanitation Fund, recommends that the Newnan City 
Council may adopt the updated fee schedule, as presented.  
 
Attachments:  
 
1. Proposed updated City of Newnan Fee Schedule  
        
Previous Discussions with Council:  
 
Newnan City Council, beginning in 2017, has considered several programs, policies and 
ordinance amendments, as briefly described herein, to address the successful provision of 
downtown commercial and residential solid waste services.   
 
 

40



 
 

City of Newnan 
Fee Schedule 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2/14/2023 
City of Newnan, GA 
Nicole Hall, Finance Director 

41



City of Newnan Fee Schedule 

Table of Contents 

 

I. FACILITY RENTALS .................................................................................................. 1 

II. SPECIAL EVENTS ..................................................................................................... 1 

III. BUSINESS LICENSE .................................................................................................. 1 

IV. PUBLICATIONS AND DOCUMENTS ......................................................................... 1 

V. CEMETERY FEES ...................................................................................................... 2 

VI. FINES ...................................................................................................................... 3 

VII. COPIES .................................................................................................................... 3 

VIII.TREE REMOVAL ...................................................................................................... 3 

IX. FIRE MARSHALL INSPECTION AND REVIEW ........................................................... 4 

X. BUILDING PERMITS, INSPECTION AND REVIEW ..................................................... 5 

XI. DEVELOPMENT FEES .............................................................................................. 7 

XII. FILMING IN NEWNAN ............................................................................................. 9 

XIII. OPEN RECORDS REQUESTS ................................................................................... 9 

XIV. PARADES/RACES/WALKS & RUNS ........................................................................ 9 

XV.   MISCELLANEOUS .................................................................................................. 9 

XVI. REFUNDS ............................................................................................................... 9 

      

  

42



1 City of Newnan Fee Schedule         File: Finance/City of Newnan Fee Schedule.docx 

 

Fee Schedule for the City of Newnan, Georgia 
February 14, 2023 

 

 

I. FACILITY RENTALS 

 

Carnegie Library Meeting Rooms  

Carnegie Meeting Room Rentals – Additional Fees 

a. After-Hours Fee – open room (includes equipment set-up) ……..$25.00 

b. After-Hours Fee – close room (includes equipment shutdown) ...$25.00 

 

Hourly Rental Fees (1-4 Hours): 

Location: 
Security 
Deposit: 

Hourly Rental Fee: 

Parks $100 $10 

Howard Warner Community 
Center, Howard Warner Gym and 

Wesley Street Gym 
$100 

Non Profit In County: $10 
Non Profit Out of County: $15 

For Profit In County: $15 
For Profit Out of County: $25 

Wadsworth Auditorium  No Hourly Rental Rate 

      

Deposit 
$100 

(refundable) 

Rental Rates 

2 Rooms (Full Day Rental) 

Nonprofit (Coweta) - $150/day 

Nonprofit (non-Coweta) - $250/day 

For profit (Coweta) - $275/day 

For profit (non-Coweta) - $475/day 

2 Rooms (1/2 Day Rental) 

Nonprofit (Coweta) - $100/day 

Nonprofit (non-Coweta) - $150/day 

For profit (Coweta) - $175/day 

For profit (non-Coweta) - $275/day 

1 Room (Full Day Rental) 

Nonprofit (Coweta) - $100/day 

Nonprofit (non-Coweta) - $150/day 

For profit (Coweta) - $175/day 

For profit (non-Coweta) - $275/day 

1 Room (1/2 Day Rental) 

Nonprofit (Coweta) - $75/day 

Nonprofit (non-Coweta) - $100/day 

For profit (Coweta) - $125/day 

For profit (non-Coweta) - $175/day 

Notes 
Scheduled on first- 
come-first-serve 
basis 
 
 

43



2 City of Newnan Fee Schedule         File: Finance/City of Newnan Fee Schedule.docx 

 

    Daily Rental Fees: 

Location: 
Security 
Deposit: 

Daily Rental Fee: 

Parks $100 $50 

Howard Warner Community Center, 
Howard Warner Gym and Wesley 

Street Gym 
$100 

Non Profit In County: $50 
Non Profit Out of County: $75 

For Profit In County: $75 
For Profit Out of County: $125 

Wadsworth Auditorium 

$500 
Food/Bev 

Alcohol +$500 
Food/Bev No 

Alcohol +$250 
 

Non Profit In County: $300 
Non Profit Out of County: $400 

For Profit In County: $500 
For Profit Out of County: $600 

 
Food/Bev + Alcohol (Rental Fee): +$250 

Food/Bev No Alcohol (Rental Fee): +$150 
 

Cleaning Fee Required: $150 
Food/Bev (Cleaning Fee): +$150 

 
Required A/V Tech Fees: $315 – Half Day 

up to 6 hours, $500 Full Day up to 12 
hours 

 

     Weekly Rental Fees: 

 

      Monthly Rental Fees: 

Location: 
Security 
Deposit: 

Monthly Rental Fee: 

Parks $100 $750 

Location: 
Security 
Deposit: 

Weekly Rental Fee: 

Parks $100 $245 

Howard Warner Community 
Center, Howard Warner Gym, 

Wesley Street Gym 
$100 

Non Profit In County: $245 
Non Profit Out of County: $370 

For Profit In County: $370 
For Profit Out of County: $615 

Wadsworth Auditorium  No Weekly Rental Rate 

44



3 City of Newnan Fee Schedule         File: Finance/City of Newnan Fee Schedule.docx 

 

Howard Warner Community 
Center, Howard Warner Gym and 

Wesley Street Gym 
$100 

Non Profit In County: $750 
Non Profit Out of County: $1125 

For Profit In County: $1125 
For Profit Out of County: $1875 

Wadsworth Auditorium  No Monthly Rental Rate 

       Note:  Deposits are refundable unless damages occur or facilities are not cleaned appropriately   

after the event.  In these cases, deposits could be forfeited and extra charges incurred by the person 

or business who scheduled the event. 

 

II. SPECIAL EVENTS 

 

Non-City Sponsored Events in the Downtown District 

a. Security Fee ................................................ $ 35.00  per hour   per officer 

b. Sanitation/Clean-Up Fee ....................................................... $150.00 / day 

c. Use of Police Vehicle....................................... $50.00 per day per vehicle 

 

III. BUSINESS LICENSE 

See City of Newnan Code of Ordinances – Chapter 6 

 

 

IV. PUBLICATIONS AND DOCUMENTS 

 

a. Development Regulations 

1. Zoning Ordinance (complete) .................................................. $150.00 

2. Subdivision Regulations (complete) .......................................... $10.00 

3. Landscape Ordinance (complete) .............................................. $10.00 

4. Comprehensive Plan (complete) ................................................ $30.00 

 

b. Printed Maps 

 

1. Large .......................................................................................... $15.00 

2. Small (11” x 17”, or smaller) ..................................................... $10.00 

 

c. City Code (complete) ..................................................................... $150.00 

 

d. Accident Reports ................................................................................ $5.00 

 

e. Service Charge for Dissemination of Criminal History Records (each name)

.......................................................................................................... $10.00 

 

f. Georgia Felony Conviction Report ............................... $20.00 Per Inquiry 

 

g. Incident Report................................................................................... $5.00 

 

h. Arrest Booking Copy ......................................................................... $5.00 

45



4 City of Newnan Fee Schedule         File: Finance/City of Newnan Fee Schedule.docx 

 

 

i. Copy of Citation ................................................................................. $5.00 

j. Video/DVD Copies .......................................................................... $50.00 

 

k. Aerial Photography, Per CD ............................................... $50.00 per CD 

(Maximum of 3 photos per CD, Paper copies not available.) 

 
Open Records Request Fees are located under Section XIII.) 

 

V. CEMETERY FEES 

 

a. Burial Spaces 

1. Oak Hill Cemetery (Above ground or bronze monuments permitted) 

City Resident ......................................................................... $ 550.00 

County Resident .................................................................... $ 750.00 

Out of County Resident ......................................................... $ 950.00 

 

2. Eastview Cemetery (Old Section, above ground or bronze monuments permitted) 

City Resident ......................................................................... $ 500.00  

County Resident .................................................................... $ 600.00 

Out of County Resident ......................................................... $ 700.00 

 

3. Eastview Cemetery (New Section, bronze monuments only) 

City Resident ......................................................................... $ 500.00 

County Resident .................................................................... $ 600.00 

Out of County Resident ......................................................... $ 700.00 

 

b. Grave Opening and Closing Fees 

1. Weekdays  

      Per Grave ............................................................................... $ 600.00 

 Cremation (For Urn) .............................................................. $ 250.00 

Arrivals after 3:00 PM – additional fee .................................. $100.00 

 

2. Holidays and Weekends 

 Per Grave ............................................................................... $ 700.00 

Cremation (for Urn) ............................................................... $ 350.00 

Arrivals after 3:00 PM – additional fee .................................. $100.00 

 

c.  Permit for Setting Monuments 

1. Footstones ................................................................................. $10.00 

2. Headstones ................................................................................ $10.00 

3. Mausoleums .............................................................................. $25.00 

 

d. Disinterment and Reinterment 

1. Disinterment and Reinterment ............................................. $1,300.00 

46



5 City of Newnan Fee Schedule         File: Finance/City of Newnan Fee Schedule.docx 

 

2. Disinterment Only .................................................................. $800.00 

3. Arrivals after 3:00 PM – additional fee .................................. $100.00 

 

 

VI. FINES 

 

a. Parking 

1. 15 Minute Violation ............................................................... $ 25.00 

2. 2-Hour Zone Parking .............................................................. $25.00 

3. Double Parking ....................................................................... $30.00 

4. Fire lane Violation ................................................................ $100.00 

5. Habitual Offense ..................................................................... $50.00 

6. Handicapped Zone Violation ................................................ $100.00 

7. Loading Zone Violation ......................................................... $ 50.00 

8. Prohibited Parking Zone Violation ........................................ $ 25.00 

9. Within 15’ of a Fire Hydrant ................................................ $100.00 

10.    Parking – Wrong Direction ..................................................... $25.00 

11.    Impounded Vehicles (after 3-day notice) ....................... $35.00/Day                                                     

(plus any applicable towing./wrecker fees) 

 

 

 

VII. COPIES 

a. Use of Large Format Copier .................................................... $4.00/Copy 

 

b. 8.5 x 11, 8.5 x 14, and 11 x 17 Copies ..................................... $0.25/Copy 
(Open Records Request Fees are located under Section XIII.) 

 

TREE REMOVAL 

 

Permits shall be obtained by any person/company engaged in the removal of trees for a fee.  

Tree removal performed under a Land Disturbance Permit will not be charged per the 

following schedule. 

 

c. Issuing permit for removal of trees on property zoned Commercial or Industrial

.......................................................................................................... $15.00 

 

1. Cutting and/or trimming one to five trees ............................... $10.00 

2. Cutting and/or logging one acre .............................................. $10.00 

3. Each additional acre up to 10 acres .................................. $5.00/Acre 

4. Each additional acre between 11 and 50 .......................... $4.00/Acre 

5. Each additional acre over 50 ............................................ $2.00/Acre 

 

d. Issuing Permit for removal of trees on residential property ............ $15.00 

 

47



6 City of Newnan Fee Schedule         File: Finance/City of Newnan Fee Schedule.docx 

 

Homeowners who remove trees on their own property without the cost of a person or 

company engaged in removing trees for a fee shall not pay any fee until they remove 

more than five trees at a time. 

 

1. Cutting of five or less trees ....................................................... $0.00 

2. Cutting of 6-10 trees ............................................................... $10.00 

3. Cutting more than 10 trees but less than 20 ............................ $20.00 

4. Clear cutting or logging one acre (per acre) ........................... $25.00 

5. Each additional acre up to ten acres ................................. $5.00/Acre 

6. Each additional acre between 11 and 50 .......................... $4.00/Acre 

7. Each additional acre over 50 ............................................ $2.00/Acre  

VIII. FIRE MARSHALL INSPECTION AND REVIEW 

 

a. Anhydrous ammonia permit for storage in bulk (more than 2,000 gallons aggregate 

capacity) for sale or distribution  ................................................... $100.00 

(One-time fee) 

 

b. Annual license for manufacture of explosives other than fireworks              

........................................................................................................ $100.00 

 

c. Annual license  for manufacture, storage, or transport of fireworks 

........................................................................................................ $100.00 

 

d. Carnival License ............................................................................ $100.00 

 

e. Certificate of Occupancy ............................................................... $100.00 

 

f. Construction Plan Review 

1. Bulk Storage Construction ....................................................... $100.00 

2. Building Const. less than 10,000 square feet ........................... $100.00 

3. Building Const. over 10,000 square feet .......................... $0.015/sq. ft. 

 

g. Fire Sprinkler Plan Review ........................................................... $ 150.00 

 

h. Fire Alarm Plan Review................................................................. $150.00 

 

i. Liquefied Petroleum Gas Storage License 

1. 2,000 Gallons or Less .............................................................. $100.00 

2. More than 2,000 Gallons.......................................................... $500.00 

 

j. Building Construction Inspection      

1. 80 Percent, 100 Percent and Annual ..................................  No Charge 

2. Second Follow-up Inspection ................................................. $ 150.00 

3. Third and Each Subsequent Follow Ups ................................. $ 220.00 

 

k. Purchase, Storage, Sale, Transport, or Use of Explosives other than Fireworks 

48



7 City of Newnan Fee Schedule         File: Finance/City of Newnan Fee Schedule.docx 

 

1. 500 Pounds or Less .................................................................... $50.00 

2. More than 500 Pounds ............................................................. $100.00 

 

l. New Self-Service Gasoline Station One-Time Fee ....................... $100.00 

 

m. Dispense compressed natural gas (CNG) for vehicular fuel, one-time fee

........................................................................................................ $100.00 

 

n. Tent Inspection................................................................................. $25.00 

 

o. Burning Permit ................................................................................ $ $0.00 

X.        BUILDING PERMITS, INSPECTIONS AND REVIEWS 
 

a. Building Permits (Based on Job Valuation) 

1. $1,000 and less, No Fee, unless inspection required, in which case a $15.00 fee for each 

inspection shall be charged. 

       

2. $1,001 to $50,000, $15.00 for the first $1,000, plus $5.00 for each additional thousand 

or fraction thereof, up to and including $50,000. 

 

3. $50,001 to $100,000, $260.00 for the first $50,000, plus $4.00 for each additional 

thousand or fraction thereof, up to and including $100,000. 

 

4. $100,001 to $500,000, $460.00 for the first $100,000, plus $3.00 for each additional 

thousand or fraction thereof, up to and including $500,000. 

 

5. $500,001 and up, $1,660.00 for the first $500,000, plus $2.00 for each additional 

thousand or fraction thereof. 

 

b. Structure Moving Fees .......................................................................... $100.00 

 

c. Demolition Fee 

1. 0-100,000 cu. Ft. .............................................................................. $50.00 

2. Over 100,000 cu. Ft. ........................................................ $.50/1,000 cu ft. 

 

d. Architectural Plan Review 

1. Residential.......................................................................................  $75.00 

2. Non Residential/Multi-Family 

0 to 5,000 sq. ft. ............................................................  $0.09 / sq. ft. +     

the next 5,001 to 10,000 sq. ft. ...................................  $0.075 / sq. ft. + 

all over 10,000 sq. ft. .........................  $0.06 / sq. ft. (5,000 Maximum) 

 

e. Electrical 

1. Base Permit ...................................................................................... $25.00 

2. Additional Fees 

 Minor Repairs .............................................................................. $10.00 

49



8 City of Newnan Fee Schedule         File: Finance/City of Newnan Fee Schedule.docx 

 

 Change in Service ........................................................................ $25.00 

 New Service ................................................................................. $50.00 

 Temporary Service ....................................................................... $10.00 

 Equipment Installation ........................................................ $10.00/each 

                 

f. Plumbing 

1. Base Permit ...................................................................................... $25.00 

2. Additional Fees 

Minor Repairs ............................................................................... $10.00 

New Restroom (each) ................................................................... $10.00 

New Kitchen/Break Room ............................................................ $10.00 

g. Mechanical 

1. Base Permit ...................................................................................... $25.00 

2. Additional fees 

Minor Repairs ............................................................................... $10.00 

New Equipment (60,000 BTU of less) ................................ $10.00/each 

    New Equipment (>60,000 BTU).......................................... $50.00/each 

 

h. Gas 

1. Base Permit ................................................................................... $10.00 

 

 

i. Penalties 

1.  If work for which a permit is required is started or preceded prior to obtaining said 

permit, the fee herein shall be doubled, but the payment of such double fee shall not 

relieve any persons from fully complying with the requirements of the code in the 

execution of work, nor from any other penalties prescribed herein. 

2. The fee to re-inspect any work not satisfying applicable requirements is $50.00 per re-

inspection visit, to be paid prior to the issuance of the Certificates of Occupancy.   

 

 

 

XI. DEVELOPMENT FEES 

 

                  a.   Site Development Plan Review 

1. Residential Subdivision ...................... $5.00/Lot;  $400.00  Minimum 

2. Multi-Family/Condominium ............. $8.00/Unit;  $400.00  Minimum 

3. Office/Commercial .......................... $0.02/sq.ft.;  $400.00  Minimum 

4. Industrial ........................................... $0.01/sq.ft.; $400.00  Minimum 

5. Public Street Plans Only ................ $0.25/Liner Foot; $300 Minimum 

6. Grading Plans Only ................................ $20.00/Acre; $300 Minimum 

 

b. Subdivision Plats  

1. Preliminary Subdivision Plat ........................... $2.00/lot $100.00  Min 

2. Final Subdivision Plat (with street acceptance) ......................  $100.00 

3. Minor Final Plat ......................................................................... $50.00 

50



9 City of Newnan Fee Schedule         File: Finance/City of Newnan Fee Schedule.docx 

 

 

c. Rezoning/Annexation Applications 

1. Single-Family Application ......................... $500/Plus $15.00 Per Acre 

2. Multi-Family Application .......................... $500/Plus $25.00 Per Acre 

3. Office/Institutional Application ................. $500/Plus $15.00 Per Acre 

4. Commercial Application ............................ $500/Plus $25.00 Per Acre 

5. Industrial Application ................................ $500/Plus $15.00 Per Acre 

6. Annexation Application  .......................................................................  

$600/Plus fees per acre as determined by the requested zoning classification. 

7. Overlay Zoning Application .................................................... $350.00 

                   

d. Site Preparation Permit 

1. Single-Family Lot Developed Subdivision .................................. $50.00 

 

2. Subdivision, Commercial, Office, Institutional and Industrial Tracts (all acreage to be 

rounded up to next acre) 

a) 0-5 acres, $100.00 for 1st acre or fraction thereof; $50.00 per acre for next 4 acres 

b) 5-10 acres, $100.00 for 1st acre of fraction thereof; $50.00 per acre for next 4 

acres; $25.00 per acre for next 5 acres 

c) 10-100 acres, $100.00 for 1st acre; $50.00 per acre for next 4 acres; $25.00 per 

acre; $15.00 per acre for next 90 acres 

d) 110 + acres, $100.00 for 1st acre; $50.00 per acre for next 4 acres; $25.00 per 

acre for next 5 acres; $15.00 per acre for next 90 acres; $5.00 per acre for all 

acreage over 100 acres 

 

e. NPDES General Permit for Construction Activity .... $40.00 Per Acre Fee  

- as established by EPD Requirement, 391-3-6.11(4). 

 

f. Land Disturbing Activity Permit (based on Job Valuation) 

1. $1,000 and Less, No Fee, unless inspection required, in which case a $15.00 fee for 

each inspection shall be charged. 

 

2. $1001 to $50,000, $15.00 for the first $1,000 plus $5.00 for each additional thousand 

or fraction thereof, to and including $50,000. 

 

3. $50,001 to $100,000, $260.00 for the first $50,000 plus $4.00 for each additional 

thousand or fraction thereof, to and including $100,000. 

 

4. $100,001 to $500,000, $460.00 for the first $100,000 plus $3.00 for each additional 

thousand or fraction thereof, to and including $500,000 

 

5. $500,001 and up, $1,660.00 for the first $500,000 plus $2.00 for each additional 

thousand or fraction thereof. 

 

g. Miscellaneous Development Fees 

1. Variance Application ............................................................... $250.00 

51



10 City of Newnan Fee Schedule         File: Finance/City of Newnan Fee Schedule.docx 

 

2. Special Exception Application ................................................. $250.00 

3. Administrative Appeals Application........................................ $250.00 

4. Zoning Certification Letter (basic) ............................................ $25.00 

5. Zoning Certification Letter (in depth) ...................................... $100.00 

6. Application for Sidewalk/Driveway Permit............................... $25.00 

7. Sidewalk Inspection or Re-Inspection ....................................... $25.00 

8. Certificate of Appropriateness ................................................. $150.00 

9. Parking Lots, including resurfacing/restriping .......................... $50.00 
 

 

XII. FILMING IN NEWNAN 

a. Filming – Permitted upon approval of application by City Manager or designee. 

NOTE:  These fees are established within the City Ordinances Section 6.176 and are included in this Fee 

Schedule as a courtesy for information purposes only. 

 
Application Processing Fee  $100 (non-refundable)  
Base Permit Fee  $100 per day  
Street Closure Fee  $500 per day, per street/city block  
Intermittent Street Closure Fee  $250 per day, per street/city block  
Parking Fee*  $20 per space, per day  
Parks  $250 per day  
Cemeteries  $250 per day  
Wadsworth Auditorium  $500 per day  
Wesley Street Gymnasium  $500 per day  
Howard Warner Community Center  $500 per day  
Carnegie Library  $1,000 per day  

 
*Pricing for parking includes on-street and off-street city owned parking lots 

 

XIII. OPEN RECORDS  

a. Staff Time:  Charged only after the first 15 minutes and at the rate of the lowest paid employee 

capable of performing the work 

b. Copies:  Up to 11”x17” size are assessed .10 per copy 

c. Large Drawings:  Assessed at the cost to the City for having reproductions made 

d. Additional Fees:  Depending on the location of items, other fees may be assessed 

NOTE:  These fees are established within the Open Records Request Procedures and are included in this Fee 

Schedule as a courtesy for information purposes only.  All Open Records Requests must be made through the 

City Clerk for adherence to the procedures within the governing state law. 

 

XIV.      PARADES/RACES/WALKS AND RUNS 

52



11 City of Newnan Fee Schedule         File: Finance/City of Newnan Fee Schedule.docx 

 

a. Any parade, walk or run that does not require an entrance fee to be paid by participants is 

exempt from paying the fees for police officer deployment – This includes the annual 

NHS Homecoming Parade and the MLK Parade. 

 

b. Road Races and Walks 

1.    5K –  15 Officers – 12 Volunteers – 2 Hours* -  $   654.30** 

2.  10K –  22 Officers – 15 Volunteers – 3 Hours* -  $1,439.46** 

3.  15K –  22 Officers – 22 Volunteers – 4 Hours* -  $1,919.28** 

4.  Walks – 5 Officers – 05 Volunteers – 2 Hours* -  $   218.10** 

 

c. Parades 

1.  15 Officers – 9 Volunteers – 3 Hours* - $981.45** 
 

*Officers needed for set up time/2 Officers/2 hours earlier that the start of the event for roping off areas, 

setting up barricades and traffic cones and removing them at the end of the event. 

*Hourly salary is based on an average of $21.81 per hour 

 

XIV. SOLID WASTE (RESIDENTAIL AND DOWNTOWN COMMERCIAL) 

 

Residential Service: 

 

I. Base Services  

Service  Monthly Rate Per Residential Unit  

Weekly Residential Refuse Service                                           $21.26 

II. Additional Carts  

Service  Monthly Rate per Additional Cart   

*Additional Residential Refuse Cart                                              $5.00* 

III. Brush and Bulk  

Service Monthly Rate Per Residential Unit 

Weekly Pick-up $9.26 

IV. Account Management  

Service  Monthly Rate Per Residential Unit  

Customer Service Function                                              $1.88 

V. Total  

Monthly Residential Rate Monthly Rate for Brush, Bulk, Garbage, Recycling and 
Account Management 

Total Monthly Charge $32.40 

53



12 City of Newnan Fee Schedule         File: Finance/City of Newnan Fee Schedule.docx 

 

 

Replacement Cart (Due to customer neglect) .......................................................... $75.00 

Premium Backdoor Service  ........................................................................ $48.75/month 

(Not including those demonstrating disability or medical hardship) 

Medical Backdoor Service ........................................................................... $32.40/month 

Late Fee .............................................................................. $5.00/quarter (billing cycle) 

Customer Account Re-establishment Fee .................................................. $35/occurrence 

Fee for excess brush and bulk debris in violation of ordinance .................. $50/cubic yard 

 

 

Downtown Commercial Service:  

 

Customer Monthly Fee 

Residential $14.96 

Office/Professional less than 2,000 feet $14.96 

Office/Professional greater than 2,000 feet $27.42 

Retail less than 1,500 feet $27.42 

Retail 1,500 to 2,999 feet $39.88 

Retail greater than 3,000 feet $77.25 

Restaurant less than 1,500 feet $64.79 

Restaurant 1,500 to 2,499 feet $127.08 

Restaurant 2,500 to 3,499 feet $189.38 

Restaurant greater than 3,500 feet $251.67 

 

Late Fee .............................................................................. $5.00/quarter (billing cycle) 

Customer Account Re-establishment Fee .................................................. $35/occurrence 

Fee for excess brush and bulk debris in violation of ordinance .................. $50/cubic yard 

 

  

 

XVI.     MISCELLANEOUS 
Alcoholic Beverage License Fees 

1. License Application Fee ......................................................... $100.00 

2. Amended Application Fee (Transfers, Location Change, Licensee or License 

Representative Change) .......................................................... $100.00 

3. Annual License Fees: 

 Retail Consumption Dealer (distilled spirits, malt beverage & wine)  

  ............................................................................................. $2,500.00 

 Microbrewery (Beer) ........................................................... $1,000.00 

 Add Brewpub License (On-Premise Only) ......................... $1,500.00 

54



13 City of Newnan Fee Schedule         File: Finance/City of Newnan Fee Schedule.docx 

 

 Add Growler’s License (Off-Premise Only) ....................... $1,500.00 

Retail Consumption Dealer (malt beverage & wine) ............. $500.00 

Retail Consumption (malt beverage only) .............................. $250.00 

Retail Consumption (wine only) ............................................ $250.00 

 Retail Package Dealer (malt beverage and wine) ................... $500.00 

Retail Package Dealer (malt beverage only) .......................... $250.00 

Retail Package Dealer (wine only) ......................................... $250.00 

Wholesale Dealer (distilled spirits, malt beverages & wine)  $300.00 

Wholesale Dealer (malt beverage and wine) .......................... $200.00 

Wholesale Dealer (distilled spirits only) ................................ $100.00 

Wholesale Dealer (malt beverage only) ................................. $100.00 

Special Events Location (permit only) ................................... $150.00 

Note:  This permit does not allow the sale of alcohol.          

4. Special Event Permit ...................................................... $50.00/event 

 

Note: These fees are established within the Alcohol Beverage Ordinance and are included in this Fee 

Schedule as a courtesy and for information purposes only. 

 

a. Lot Clearing/Grass Cutting by City Forces 

1. Administrative Fee (per lot cleaned) .......................................... $25.00 

2. Grass Cutting ................................................................. $150.00/Hour 

3. Lot Clearing ........................... $150.00/Hour/piece of equipment used 

 

b. Redemption of Impounded Animal (charged per day) is determined by the Coweta 

County Animal Shelter.  Please call for fees. 

 

c. Permit Application Fee - Adult Entertainment Establishment ...... $100.00 

 

d. Change in Location - Adult Entertainment Establishment .............. $50.00 

 

e. Administrative Variance Application Fee ....................................... $50.00 

 

f. Returned Check Fee ......................................................................... $30.00 

 

g. Fingerprinting (Police) ..................................................................... $10.00 

h. Taxi Permit (per driver) .................................................................. $ 35.00 

 

i. Canvasser/Solicitor 

1. Registration Fee (per person/per day) ....................................... $ 35.00 

2. Application Fee .......................................................................... $25.00 

 

 

 

 XVII.       REFUNDS 

55



14 City of Newnan Fee Schedule         File: Finance/City of Newnan Fee Schedule.docx 

 

Request for refunds for fees paid in error or for which no work is ever performed or services 

rendered shall be made to the appropriate department head, who shall investigate the request 

and forward the request and recommendation the City Manager.  If the refund requested is 

$ 5,000.00 or less, the City Manager is authorized to grant or deny the request.  If the refund 

requested is more than $ 5,000.00, or if the City Manager has denied the request, the request 

for refund along with the department head’s and City Manager’s recommendation shall be 

forwarded to the City Council for consideration.   

 

A $25.00 administrative fee shall be deducted from any request for refund approved by the 

City manager or the City Council. 

         

 

 

 

56



 

City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 

Date:02/07/2023  

Agenda Item: Audit Services Vendor Recommendation 

Prepared By: Nicole Hall, Finance Director 

 

 
Purpose:  To obtain Council approval of the vendor selected to provide auditing services for the City of 

Newnan for the year 2022, with an option for additional years pending approval by both parties. 

 

Background:  The City reached out to 5 qualified audit firms during December 2022 to solicit interest in 

providing audit services for the City of Newnan. Of the 5 firms contacted, 2 firms returned information and 

only one firm has the ability to perform the 2022 audit. Although the City has a long-standing relationship 

with former members of Clifton, Lipford, Hardison and Parker who are now members of McNair, 

McLemore, Middlebrooks & Co., LLC, the recent economic downturn in staffing in public accounting has 

left former engagement partners without proper staff to perform audits of our size and nature. After meeting 

with Gregory Chapman of Nichols, Cauley & Associates, LLC and receiving pricing for the 2022 audit I 

want to propose a change to Nichols, Cauley & Associates, LLC. The increased staff size at Nichols, Cauley 

& Associates will allow for more interaction and recommendations for the City and the new Finance staff 

recently employed with the City. The City checked references of other local governments for Nichols, 

Cauley & Associates and each reference highly recommend the firm. 

Funding:   Budgeted Expenditure 

 

Recommendation:  Staff recommends that Council approve the selection of Nichols, Cauley & Associates, 

LLC for the City for the year ended 12/31/2022, with an optional renewal clause.  

 

Previous Discussion with Council:  None 

 

57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



 

City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 

Date: February 14, 2023 

Agenda 

Item: 

Status Updates on Properties 

Prepared and 

Presented 

By: 

Matt Murray, Code Enforcement Officer 

 

 
Purpose:  To inform Council of the status of 21 Berry Ave, 5 Smith St, 25 Pinson St and 33 Ray St, having 

been before Council in Public Hearings.  

 

Background:  Date of Status Check: February 14, 2023 

 

Property Address Owner Original 

Hearing 

Original # of 

Days Allowed 

Most Recent 

Resolution 

Date 

Extensions Updated 

Resolution 

Deadline 

Status 

21 Berry Ave Teresa 

Calderon 

2/25/2020 180 days 9/13/2022 180 days 3/14/2023 Exterior 

progress 

5 Smith St.  Arcola Morgan 5/24/2022 60 days 10/11/2022 180 days 4/11/2023 Minimal 

progress 

25 Pinson St.  SKA Realty 

Services 

5/24/2022 90 days 11/22/2022 90 days 2/23/2023 Exterior 

and interior 

progress 

33 Ray St.  SKF Jake LP 11/22/2022 30 days 1/10/2023 180 days 7/18/2023 Exterior 

progress 

 

Options: 1. Accept status reports, no further action is required. 

  2. Other direction from Council.  

 

Funding:   N/A 

 

Recommendation:  Staff is requesting Council approval for Option 1.  

 

Previous Discussion with Council:  All have previous history with Council.  

 

Note: 21 Johnson Ave – demolished 10/20/22 

          29 Pinson St. – repaired 10/21/22 

          4 Westgate Park Dr. – demolished 12/2/22 

          176 LaGrange St. – repaired 1/18/23 

 

71



 
 

 
City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 

 
Date:  February 14, 2023 

 
Agenda Item:  25 Pinson St 
 
Prepared and  
Presented by:  Matt Murray, Code Enforcement Officer 
 
Submitted by: Bill Stephenson, Chief Building Official 

 
 
 

Purpose:      Owner to update council on status and request an extension to repair the 
dilapidated structure at 25 Pinson St. 

 
Background: Owner: SKA Realty Services LLC 
 
 Date Sub-Standard housing file was opened: November 1, 2021 
 

Does the cost to bring this structure into compliance by means of repair 
exceed 50% of the structure’s assessed tax value? YES 
 
On November 1, 2021 the Building Department conducted an inspection 
of the premises and found the structure to be unsafe, uninhabitable. The 
structure has been determined to be unsafe as set forth by City 
Ordinance Section 5-24. (a), Sub-sections (3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10). 
 

 
Options: 

1. Accept the extension request from owner in order to 
complete the renovations to the property. 

2. Other direction from council. 
 
 
Funding:       Not Applicable 
 
 
 
Recommendation:   Staff is requesting Council’s approval to proceed with Option1. 
       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

72



Previous Discussions 
With Council: 
 
March 31, 2022 – Council informed of conditions. 
 
April 12, 2022 – Public hearing was requested. 
 
May 24, 2022 – Public Hearing was held with 90-day resolution deadline adopted by council.   
 
August 23, 2022 – 90-day extension request was granted by council. 
 
November 22, 2022 – 90-day extension request was granted by council.  
 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

73



 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
74



FEBRUARY 6, 2023 

Dear Megan, 

Foundation Christian Church is requesting to close South Court Square from 2pm to 10pm on Friday, April 7th, 2023.We are 

planning to host a Good Friday gathering for the community just off the Court Square. In keeping with City protocol, we 

plan to rent portable restrooms and line up trash services for the event. If needed, we can also provide security. We are 

expecting over 400 people for this gathering. We are asking for the closure of the road from 2pm forward so that we can 

begin to set up our staging and production equipment in preparation for the event that evening. We have completed the 

details required by city staff and it is attached to this request letter. We also will be asking our people - well over 400 

people - to shop and eat on the square prior to the event getting started. The two years that we have been able to host this 

event we have more than followed through with that ask. Our people always take care of our downtown merchants.  

I have also taken the time to reach out to Lee Chitwood, one of the pastors at First Baptist, and he and their leadership are 

also in favor of our event being held on South Court Square.  

Also, over the last few weeks we have spoken with all of the businesses and offices on South Court Square and the 

overwhelming majority are in support of our event and none are in opposition to our event, or the blocking of the parking 

spaces, for the time period requested. Some of them have written letters of support for us and the event which are 

attached. 

The following businesses/offices are in support of our event or not in opposition (at the time of this proposal being sent 

to City Staff): 

Vinylyte Records 
Brown’s Guitar Mill 
Corner Arts 
Leaf and Bean 
Ace Beer Growlers 
Mad Mexican 
Law Office of Michael West 
Buckhead FMV 
Avery and Pope Wealth Management 
Camp and Henderson Law Offices 
 
We will be happy to answer any question pertaining to this request.  

Jason Walton 

COMMUNITY OUTREACH PASTOR 

Foundation Christian Church 

6 Perry St. 

Newnan, GA 30263 

Tel (770) 396-2220 

Jason@FoundationNewnan.com 

www.FoundationNewnan.com 

 

 

75



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-04-20 12:23:25 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 14) 

 
Page 1 of 2 

In accordance with protocol, Foundation Christian Church is requesting use 

of South Court Square on April 7, 2023. See details below in red. 

Sec. 18-152. Application. 

A person seeking issuance of a parade permit shall file application with the office of the city manager on 
forms provided by the city.  

(1) Filing period. An application for a parade permit shall be filed not less than ten days or more than 30 
days before the date on which it is proposed to conduct the parade.  

a. We need to have this request approved more than 30 days in advance so that we can plan and 
promote our Community Good Friday Event.  

(2) Contents. The application for a parade permit shall set forth the following information:  

a.  The name, address and telephone number of the person seeking to conduct the parade; and the 
applicant, if different.  

 Jason Walton, 6 Perry Street Newnan 30263, 678-378-3927 

b. If the parade is proposed to be conducted for, on behalf of, or by an organization, the name, 
address and telephone number of the headquarters of the organization, and of the authorized 
and responsible heads of that organization.  

 This is being requested by Foundation Christian Church (see contact details above). 

c. The name, address and telephone number of the person who will be the parade leader and 
who will be responsible for its conduct.  

 See above 

d. The date when the parade is to be conducted. 

 Community Good Friday Event will be held on Friday, April 7, 2023.   

e. The route to be traveled, the starting point and the termination point.  

 N/A 

f. The approximate number of persons who, and animals and vehicles which, will constitute the 
parade; the type of animals, and description of the vehicles.  

 N/A 

g. The hours when the parade will start and terminate.  

 We need South Court Square to be closed from 2pm – 10pm. 

h. A statement as to whether the parade will occupy all or only a portion of the width of the 
streets proposed to be traversed.  

 The entire space on above named road will be utilized.  

i. The location by streets of any assembly and dispersal areas for the parade.  

 N/A 

j. The time at which units of the parade will begin to assemble at any assembly area or areas and 
a designation of the assembly area and the dispersal area.  

76



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-04-20 12:23:25 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 14) 

 
Page 2 of 2 

 N/A 

k. The interval of space to be maintained between units of the parade.  

 N/A 

l. If the parade is designed to be held by, and on behalf of or for, any person other than the 
applicant, the applicant for the permit shall file with the office of the city business license 
department a communication in writing from the person proposing to hold the parade, 
authorizing the applicant to apply for the permit on its, his behalf.  

 N/A 

m. Any expenditure of funds by the applicant or his organization for or on behalf of participants in 
the parade, the amounts thereof and the names and addresses of to whom paid.  

 N/A 

n. Any additional information which the city business license department shall find reasonably 
necessary to a fair determination as to whether a permit should issue.  

 N/A 

(3) Late applications. The city manager, where good cause is shown therefor, shall have the authority to 
consider any application under this division which is filed less than ten days before the date the parade 
is proposed to be conducted.  

(4) Fee. No fee shall be charged for such permit.  

 

 

77



 

 

                                           February 3, 2023 

 

Dear Jason, 

It was great talking to you the other day about the Event you and your Church are 

planning to bring to the Newnan Court Square. 

I am excited that this event is a Good Friday Event on the Square Friday, April 

7th.  There are a lot of unchurched/unbelievers this day and time and I believe 

that this event could bring Jesus to downtown.  We are disciples and need to 

spread the Word! 

As you know, we are located at 30 S. Court Sq, and we always love having the 

Events which bring in customers to our Shop. 

Thank you for doing what ya’ll do for our community and if I can do anything 

please let me know. 

Sincerely, 

Jenny Jones 

Corner Arts Gallery 

30 S. Court Square 

Newnan, GA  30263 

678-633-5705 

 

 

 

 

 

78



 
 

February 1, 2023 

 

 

To Whom it May Concern: 

 

I am an owner of BuckheadFMV. Our office is 36 South Court Square, Suite 100, Newnan, GA.  We 
understand that Foundation Christian Church has requested a street closure for South Court Square on 
April 7, 2023, from 2 pm to 10 pm. With proper notice, street closures for a limited amount of time have 
minimal impact on our business. Therefore, I don’t have reason to oppose the closure.  

You are welcome to contact me with any questions.  

Regards, 

 

 
Darcy Devine 
BuckheadFMV  
ddevine@buckheadfmv.com 
678-987-8765 

79

mailto:ddevine@buckheadfmv.com


To the Newnan City Counsel, 

I am writing in support of Foundation Church's Good Friday event coming up on April Jth 
where they are requesting to close south court square. They will shift parking to other areas of 
downtown and it will not affect business or traffic flow. As a business owner in downtown for 
the past 10 years, Foundation Church has always been super supportive of us and sends us 
customers more than anyone. We are truly blessed to have such a great church in downtown 
that goes above and beyond to not only be different but to be so supportive with the 
community. Foundation Church always thinks first about its downtown businesses being 
affected they also drive people to our restaurant and has always strived to serve downtown 
merchants in every way possible. Hopefully this great event for downtown will be approved and 
be very successful for not only the church but all the merchants in downtown. 

80



Hey Jason,

Hope all is well.

I wanted to reach out to you and let you (Foundation) know that my business is in complete
support of any events you’d like to hold in Downtown Newnan. After seeing the amount of love
and support provided to our community over the past few years, I cannot think of any reason
why a community partner such as Foundation would receive any pushback from business
owners. I know that parking is always an issue and always will be. I’d gladly give up a few
spaces any time they’re needed in order to watch our community grow together.

Thank you all for everything you do for our community! We are all truly better for it and your
support; it’s time we return that support.

I hope to see you in Downtown for Good Friday!

Jason Kanner
Ace Beer Growlers
Cow Eata Meat Co
Southside Safe
Southside Wood Kiln

81



Motion to Enter into Executive Session 
 
I move that we now enter into closed session as allowed by O.C.G.A. §50-14-4 and 
pursuant to advice by the City Attorney, for the purpose of discussing  
 
 
And that we, in open session, adopt a resolution authorizing and directing the Mayor or 
presiding officer to execute an affidavit in compliance with O.C.G.A. §50-14-4, and that 
this body ratify the actions of the Council taken in closed session and confirm that the 
subject matters of the closed session were within exceptions permitted by the open 
meetings law. 
 
 

Motion to Adopt Resolution after Adjourning Back into Regular Session 
 
I move that we adopt the resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute the affidavit stating 
that the subject matter of the closed portion of the council meeting was within the 
exceptions provided by O.C.G.A. §50-14-4(b). 
 

82


	Top
	A.	Minutes 1/17/23
	1.17.23 Special called meeting minutes

	B.	Minutes 1/24/23
	1.24.23 Minutes

	C.	1 Appt - CAC
	D.	1 Appt - Ethics
	E.	1 Appt - KNB
	F.	2 Appts - Parks
	G.	2 Appt - Tree
	H.	1 Appt - YAC
	I.	PH - Alcohol Dynasty
	DW 2021 LLC 2.14.23

	J.	PH - Alcohol Train Depot
	Train Depot 2.14.23

	K.	PH - Alcohol McRitchie Museum
	McRitchie Hollis Museum 2.14.23

	L.	Update alcohol license
	M.	31 Jones St - Request a public hearing on March 28, 2023 for structure.
	Request for Public Hearing - Repair or Demo

	N.	GDOT Maintenance Agreement
	RESOLUTION (2-8-2023)
	0015844 Coweta - Mowing  Maintenance Agreement

	O.	Wadsworth Parking Lot
	Wadsworth Parking cover
	Concept Plan
	Newnan Event Hall Parking Lot Renovations_VE Proposal 1-23-2023

	P.	Fee Schedule
	City Council Agenda Item 2-14-2023 (Fee Schedule Update - Sanitation)
	City of Newnan Fee Schedule

	Q.	Audit Firm
	Council item - Change in Audit Firm
	Nichols Cauley engagement letter

	R.	HAN change to ARPA
	HAN ARPA Amendment Letter

	S.	Status Report - properties currently in council
	Status report cover

	T.	25 Pinson St - Owner update and request for extension.
	Extension request - Feb 14, 2023

	U.	Foundation Request
	GF City Council Request 23
	Road Closure Request GF23 (002)
	Foundation Church Good Friday 04072023
	Street Closure Note_020123
	Mad Mexican
	GF 23 Ace Letter

	V.	Executive Session
	Motion to Enter into Executive Session

	Bottom


{"type":"Document","isBackSide":false,"languages":["en-us"],"usedOnDeviceOCR":true}

